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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
WESTERN DIVISION

KOYONO CO., . CIVIL ACTION NO. 3:11-cv-047
Plaintiff, Judge Thomas M. Rose
" ' Magistrate Judge Ovington
SEVEN FOR ALL MANKIND, LLC,
Defendant.

DEFENDANT’S AMENDED ANSWER, DEFENSES AND COUNTERCLAIMS

Defendant, Seven For All Mankind, LLC (“SFAM?”), by and through counsel, files its
Amended Answer, Defenses and Counterclaims in the above-referenced action as follows:

1. Paragraph 1 of the Complaint states a legal conclusion for which no Answer is
required, and as such, SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 1 of the Complaint.

2. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 2 of the Complaint.

3. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 3 of the Complaint and denies the same.

4, SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 4 of the Complaint and denies the same.

5. SFAM admits the allegations of Paragraph 5 of the Complaint.

6. SFAM admits that it designs and sells apparel, such as denim jeans and shirts, and
accessories, such as belts and sunglasses, but denies the remaining allegations of Paragraph 6 of
the Complaint.

7. Paragraph 7 of the Complaint states a legal conclusion for which no Answer is
required. To the extent that a response may be required, SFAM admits only that Plaintiff asserts

that this Court has subject matter jurisdiction.
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8. SFAM admits that personal jurisdiction exists over SFAM in this District. Except
as so admitted, SFAM denies the remaining allegations of Paragraph 8 of the Complaint.

0. SFAM admits that Venue in this District is proper.

10. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 10 of the Complaint and denies the same.

11. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 11 of the Complaint and denies the same.

12. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 12 of the Complaint and denies the same.

13. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 13 of the Complaint and denies the same.

14. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 14 of the Complaint and denies the same.

15. In response to Paragraph 15 of the Complaint, SFAM states that Registration No.
2,994,987 in the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTQ”), and the history of such
Registration, speaks for itself. Further responding, SFAM states it believes the Registration is
subject to cancellation.

16. In response to Paragraph 16 of the Complaint, SFAM states that the history of the
Registration in the USPTO speaks for itself.

17.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 17 of the Complaint.

18.  SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 18 of the Complaint and denies the same.

19.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 19 of the Complaint.
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20. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 20 of the Complaint.
21. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 21 of the Complaint.
22. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 22 of the Complaint.
23. SFAM admits the allegations of Paragraph 23 of the Complaint.
24. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 24 of the Complaint.
25. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 25 of the Complaint.
26. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 26 of the Complaint.
27. SFAM admits the allegations of Paragraph 27 of the Complaint.
28. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 28 of the Complaint.
29. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 29 of the Complaint.
30.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 30 of the Complaint.
31. SFAM lacks sufficient information to admit or deny the allegations of
Paragraph 31 of the Complaint and denies the same.
32.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 32 of the Complaint.
33.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 33 of the Complaint.
34.  SFAM incorporates by reference its responses to Paragraphs 1-33 of the
Complaint.

35.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 35 of the Complaint.
36.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 36 of the Complaint.
37.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 37 of the Complaint.
38.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 38 of the Complaint.
39.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 39 of the Complaint.

40.  SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 40 of the Complaint.
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41. SFAM incorporates by reference its responses to Paragraphs 1-40 of the
Complaint.

42. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 42 of the Complaint.

43. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 43 of the Complaint.

44, SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 44 of the Complaint.

45. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 45 of the Complaint.

46. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 46 of the Complaint.

47. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 47 of the Complaint.

48. SFAM incorporates by reference its responses to Paragraphs 1-47 of the
Complaint.

49. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 49 of the Complaint.

50. SFAM denies the allegations of Paragraph 50 of the Complaint.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

SFAM denies that is liable to Plaintiff or that Plaintiff is entitled to a Judgment against
SFAM for any sum or sums whatsoever. Specifically, SFAM denies all of the allegations set
forth in paragraphs numbered 1 through 8 of the Complaint under the section of the Complaint
entitled “PRAYER FOR RELIEF” and denies that Plaintiff is entitled to any relief whatsoever.

JURY DEMAND

SFAM relies on Plaintiff’s demand for a trial by jury of all issues so triable in this action.

AFFIRMATIVE AND SPECIAL DEFENSES

SFAM, for its affirmative defenses, states as follows:
1. The Complaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.
2. Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the doctrine of laches.

3. Plaintiff is estopped from pursuing its claims against SFAM.
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4, Plaintiff has waived its claims against SFAM.

5. Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the doctrine of acquiescence.

6. Plaintiff’s claims are barred by the doctrine of unclean hands.

7. The numerous third-party uses of variants of the word “slimmy” with respect to a

wide variety of apparel and accessories establish that, even if Koyono owns a protectable interest
in the term “SLIMMY”, it is a weak and diluted term, and the scope of protection does not
extend beyond the limited use Koyono is presently making of the term. Accordingly, SFAM’s
use of the term “slimmy” was not intended to, and does not in fact, confuse likely customers of
Koyono’s or SFAM’s respective goods.

8. Upon information and belief, Koyono and its predecessor in interest committed
fraud on the United States Patent and Trademark Office in its application and maintenance of the
Registration.

WHEREFORE, having fully answered, SFAM prays that this Court deny all relief sought
by Plaintiff, enter judgment in favor of SFAM and against Plaintiff on Plaintiff’s Complaint,
award SFAM its costs, attorneys’ fees and expenses, and grant SFAM such other and further
relief as this Court deems just and proper.

COUNTERCLAIMS

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE FOR COUNTS I, I1 AND 111

Counterclaim Plaintiff Seven For All Mankind, LLC (“SFAM?”), as and for its
Counterclaim Counts 1, 1l and I11 against Counterclaim Defendant, Koyono Co. (“Koyono”),
states as follows:

1. Counterclaim Counts I, Il and 11l arise under the Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1051 et
seq., and under state law governing substantial and related claims that arise out of the same

operative facts.
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2. SFAM is a Delaware limited liability company with offices located at 4440
E. 26™ Street, Vernon, California 90023, was founded in 2000, and sells premium denim and
related accessories to retail customers located throughout the United States and the world.

3. Koyono is an Ohio corporation with its principal place of business located at 5131
Eastover Road, Lyndhurst, Ohio 44124.

4, This Court has subject matter jurisdiction of this counterclaim pursuant to
15 U.S.C. § 1121, 28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1338, as well as under the doctrines of ancillary
jurisdiction and supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367.

5. Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

FACTS COMMON TO COUNTS I, I1 AND 111

Counterclaim Plaintiff SFAM’s Use of the SLIMMY Mark

6. SFAM utilizes the descriptive term slimmy to describe its slim fit of jeans, and
always uses such descriptor in conjunction with use of one or more of its house trademarks (i.e.,
7 FOR ALL MANKIND, the 7FAM logo, 7TFAM and SFAM, among others). Indeed, the word
slimmy is used by numerous jeans manufacturers to describe a slim cut fit style of jeans and
SFAM’s use of the descriptor slimmy to describe its fit of jeans is one of dozens of different
styles of fit of SFAM’s jeans and related clothing.

7. SFAM’s jeans and related clothing sold with a slimmy fit are sold in its own retail
stores, at www.7forallmankind.com, and through high-end, upscale national retailers, such as
Nordstrom and Bloomingdale’s, in the United States and at specialty boutiques in over eighty
countries throughout the world.

Counter-Defendant Koyono’s Registration

8. The United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) TARR database

records identify Koyono as the owner of U.S. Registration No. 2,994,987 (the “Registration” or
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“Koyono’s Mark”), registered September 13, 2005, for the mark SLIMMY for “wallets, [bill
folds], change purses, hip bags, and business card cases” in International Class 18.

Counter-Defendant’s Unlawful Activities

9. On July 12, 2004, Koyono’s predecessor in interest filed an actual use trademark
application to register the mark SLIMMY in connection with the following goods: “wallets, bill
folds, change purses, personal digital assistant (PDA) cases, hip bags, computer bags, digital
audio player (MP3 player) cases, cellular phone cases, and business card holders” in
International Class 18. A true and correct copy of the application is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

10.  OnJuly 12, 2004, Koyono’s predecessor in interest submitted a declaration and
specimen of use to the USPTO alleging that Koyono’s Mark was being used in U.S. commerce
with all of the goods listed in the application, with a date of first use as early as November 1,
2003. See Exhibit A.

11.  OnJuly 12, 2004, Koyono’s predecessor in interest’s attorney signed a
declaration submitted with the actual use application affirming the validity of the specimen, the
use of the mark on all of the goods in International Class 18 and the date of first use of Koyono’s
Mark, stating as follows:

The applicant, or the applicant’s related company or licensee, is using the mark

in commerce, and lists below the date of use by the applicant, or the applicant’s

related company, licensee, or predecessor in interest, of the mark on or in
connection with the identified goods and/or services.

15 U.S.C. Section 1051(a) as amended.

The undersigned, being hereby warned that willful false statements and the like so
made are punishable by fine or imprisonment, or both, under 18 U.S.C. Section
1001, and that such willful false statements, and the like, may jeopardize the
validity of the application or any resulting registration, declares that he/she is
properly authorized to execute this application on behalf of the applicant; he/she
believes the applicant to be the owner of the trademark/service mark sought to be
registered, or, if the application is being filed under 15 U.S.C. Section 1051(b),
he/she believes applicant to be entitled to use such mark in commerce; to the best
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of his/her knowledge and belief no other person, firm, corporation, or association
has the right to use the mark in commerce, either in the identical form thereof or
in such near resemblance thereto as to be likely, when used on or in connection
with the goods/services of such other person, to cause confusion, or to cause
mistake, or to deceive; and that all statements made of his/her own knowledge are
true; and that all statements made on information and belief are believed to be
true.

See Exhibit A.
12.  On February 16, 2005, the USPTO issued a Priority Action to Koyono’s

predecessor in interest indicating that the identification of goods was unacceptable as indefinite
and that the specimen submitted with the application was unacceptable as evidence of actual
trademark use. A true and correct copy of the Priority Action is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

13.  On February 17, 2005, Koyono’s predecessor in interest filed a Response to the
February 16, 2005 Office Action and amended the goods description by deleting the following
goods: “personal digital assistant (PDA) cases, computer bags, digital audio player (MP3 player)
cases, and cellular phone cases” and submitted a substitute specimen. A true and correct copy of
the Response to the Office Action of February 16, 2005 is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

14.  On February 17, 2005, Koyono’s predecessor in interest’s attorney signed a
second declaration submitted with the substitute specimen affirming the validity of the specimen,
stating that the mark was in use with all of the goods in International Class 18 and that the date
of first use of Koyono’s Mark was November 1, 2003. See Exhibit C.

15.  OnJune 1, 2005, the USPTO issued a Notice of Publication for Koyono’s Mark,
and on September 13, 2005 issued U.S. Registration No. 2,994,987 for Koyono’s Mark. A true
and correct copy of the Notice of Publication is attached hereto as Exhibit D. A true and correct
copy of the Registration Certificate is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

16.  On September 23, 2010, the President of Koyono’s company, Jeasung Jay Y00,

submitted a Declaration of Use in Commerce under Section 8, declaration and two specimens of
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use to the USPTO alleging that Koyono’s Mark was being used in U.S. commerce with “wallets,
change purses, hip bags and business card cases” and expressly deleted the goods “bill folds”
from the Declaration of Use. The specimens of use consisted of “[t]he SLIMMY mark on
Slimmy wallet and on instructional material for Sport Slimmy.” A true and correct copy of the
Declaration of Use is attached hereto as Exhibit F.

17. On September 23, 2010, Koyono’s President, Jeasung Jay Yoo, signed a
declaration submitted with the Declaration of Use affirming the validity of the specimens, the
use of the mark on all of the goods in International Class 18, as amended, stating as follows:

Unless the owner has specifically claimed excusable nonuse, the mark is in use in
commerce on or in connection with the goods and/or services identified above, as
evidenced by the attached specimen(s) showing the mark as used in commerce.
The undersigned being hereby warned that willful false statements and the like
are punishable by fine or imprisonment, or both, under 18 U.S.C. Section 1001,
and that such willful false statements and the like may jeopardize the validity of
this document, declares that he/she is properly authorized to execute this
document on behalf of the Owner; and all statements made of his/her own
knowledge are true and that all statements made on information and belief are
believed to be true.

See Exhibit F.
18.  On September 27, 2010, the USPTO accepted Koyono’s Declaration of Use and

specimens for Koyono’s Mark. A true and correct copy of the Notice of Acceptance is attached
hereto as Exhibit G.

19.  OnlJanuary 24, 2011, on behalf of Koyono, Koyono’s attorney submitted a
Declaration of Incontestability of a Mark under Section 15 alleging that

[flor International Class 018, the owner, or its related company, has continuously
used the mark in commerce for five (5) consecutive years after the date of
registration, or the date of publication under Section 12(c), and is still using the
mark in commerce on or in connection with all goods or services listed in the
existing registration for this class: wallets, change purses, hip bags, and business
card cases. Also, there has been no final decision adverse to the owner’s claim of
ownership of such mark for those goods or services, or to the owner’s right to
register the same or to keep the same on the register; and, there is no proceeding
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involving said rights pending and not disposed of in either the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office or the courts,” (emphasis in original) and Koyono’s President,
Jeasung Jay Yoo, declared that “The mark has been in continuous use in
commerce for five (5) consecutive years after the date of registration, or the date
of publication under Section 12(c), and is still in use in commerce. There has
been no final decision adverse to the owner’s claim of ownership of such mark, or
to the owner’s right to register the same or to keep the same on the register; and
there is no proceeding involving said rights pending and not disposed of either in
the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or in the courts. The undersigned being
hereby warned that willful false statements and the like are punishable by fine or
imprisonment, or both, under 18 U.S.C. Section 1001, and that such willful false
statements and the like may jeopardize the validity of this document, declares that
he/she is properly authorized to execute this document on behalf of the Owner;
and all statements made of his/her own knowledge are true and that all statements
made on information and belief are believed to be true.

A true and correct copy of the Declaration of Incontestability is attached hereto as Exhibit H.

20.  OnJanuary 26, 2011, the USPTO issued a Notice of Acknowledgement of the
Section 15 Declaration. A true and correct copy of the Notice of Acknowledgement is attached
hereto as Exhibit I.

21.  Oninformation and belief, Koyono has never used the SLIMMY mark in
interstate commerce in connection with all of the goods identified in Registration No. 2,994,987.
Indeed, based on the results of an investigation it conducted, SFAM asserts that Koyono is not
currently selling, and has not previously sold, certain goods in the United States under the
SLIMMY mark including certain goods identified in Registration No. 2,994,987, namely,
“change purses, hip bags and business card cases.”

22.  OnJuly 12, 2004, at the time of filing the original application, Koyono’s
predecessor in interest made a sworn declaration that it was using the SLIMMY mark in U.S.
commerce at least as early as November 1, 2003 in connection with all of the goods identified in
the application, namely, “wallets, bill folds, change purses, personal digital assistant (PDA)
cases, hip bags, computer bags, digital audio player (MP3 player) cases, cellular phone cases,

and business card holders.” This was the first of four declarations that Koyono and/or Koyono’s
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predecessor in interest made to the USPTO that it was using the mark on “change purses, hip
bags and business card cases.”

23.  OnJuly 12, 2004, Koyono’s predecessor in interest filed one specimen and
described the specimen as a “digital image of the mark as it appears on the goods.”

24. On February 17, 2005, in response to an Office Action issued by the USPTO,
Koyono’s predecessor in interest amended the identification of goods by deleting “personal
digital assistant (PDA) cases, computer bags, digital audio player (MP3 player) cases, and
cellular phone cases,” and expressly listed the goods in use in U.S. commerce as “wallets, bill
folds, change purses, hip bags and business card holders” and submitted a substitute specimen to
the USPTO and reiterated that it had commenced use of the SLIMMY mark in U.S. commerce at
least as early as November 1, 2003 in connection with “wallets, bill folds, change purses, hip
bags, and business card holders.” This was the second of four declarations that Koyono and/or
Koyono’s predecessor in interest made to the USPTO that it was using the mark on “change
purses, hip bags and business card cases.”

25.  On September 23, 2010, Koyono submitted a Declaration of Use under Section 8
and declared that Koyono’s Mark was in use in U.S. Commerce with “wallets, change purses,
hip bags and business card cases.” This was the third of four declarations that Koyono and/or
Koyono’s predecessor in interest made to the USPTO that it was using the mark on “change
purses, hip bags and business card cases.”

26. Notwithstanding the fact that Koyono’s President, Jeasung Jay Yoo, submitted a
Declaration of Use in Commerce under Section 8 and was aware that willful false statements
concerning use could be punishable by fine or imprisonment, or both, he nonetheless executed a

sworn declaration and made statements that appear to be false.
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27. On January 24, 2011, Koyono submitted a Declaration of Incontestability of a
Mark under Section 15 and declared that Koyono’s Mark was in use in U.S. Commerce with
“wallets, change purses, hip bags and business card cases.” This was the fourth declaration that
Koyono and/or Koyono’s predecessor in interest made to the USPTO that it was using the mark
on “change purses, hip bags and business card cases.”

28.  On information and belief, Koyono and/or its predecessor in interest’s statements
of July 12, 2004, February 17, 2005, September 23, 2010 and January 24, 2011 to the USPTO,
that it was using the SLIMMY mark in interstate commerce in connection with all of the goods
recited in Registration No. 2,994,987 and specifically “change purses, hip bags and business card
cases,” were false.

29. On information and belief, Koyono and/or its predecessor in interest knew at the
time it made the filings on July 12, 2004, February 17, 2005, September 23, 2010 and
January 24, 2011 that it had not used the SLIMMY mark in U.S. commerce in connection with
“change purses, hip bags and business card cases” as identified in Registration No. 2,994,987.

30.  Oninformation and belief, Koyono and/or its predecessor in interest’s four
separate statements to the USPTO attesting that it was using the SLIMMY mark in interstate
commerce in connection with all of the goods recited in Registration No. 2,994,987 were
material misrepresentations that were intended to deceive the USPTO into believing that
Koyono’s Mark had met the statutory conditions for filing an actual use trademark application
required to grant a registration for the mark, the statutory requirements for a Declaration of Use
under Section 8 required to maintain a registration, and the statutory requirements for a
Declaration of Incontestability under Section 15 required to have a mark acknowledged as

incontestable by the USPTO. Such statements were material because the USPTO would not
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have granted Registration No. 2,994,987 in the absence of Koyono attesting that it had met the
statutory requirements. Further, such statements were material because the USPTO would not
have accepted a Declaration of Use under Section 8 to maintain the Registration in the absence
of Koyono attesting that it had met the requirements. Finally, such statements were material
because the USPTO would not have issued an acknowledgment of a Section 15 Declaration in
the absence of Koyono attesting that it had met the requirements.

31. The USPTO reasonably relied on the truth of such multiple false statements and
did in fact grant Registration No. 2,994,987 and did in fact accept a Declaration of Use to
maintain Registration No. 2,994,987 and a Section 15 Declaration of Incontestability to
acknowledge the mark as incontestable.

COUNTERCLAIM COUNT |

Declaration of Non-Infringement Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 2201 and 2202

32.  SFAM realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-31 as if fully set forth
herein.

33.  Anactual controversy exists between SFAM and Counter-Defendant Koyono as
to the right to use the Slimmy description for jeans and related clothing.

34, Koyono claims that SFAM’s use of the word Slimmy to describe the particular
slim fit of its jeans and dress shirts is likely to cause confusion, to cause mistake and/or to
deceive customers and potential customers of Koyono and SFAM as to the origin, sponsorship or
approval of SFAM’s products and services, or as to some affiliation, connection or association of
SFAM with Koyono.

35.  SFAM disputes Koyono’s claims and asserts that its use of the word Slimmy to

describe the particular slim fit of its jeans and dress shirts and Koyono’s alleged use of the
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SLIMMY mark on wallets, change purses, hip bags and business card cases is not likely to cause
confusion, to cause mistake and/or to deceive customers.

36. The controversy between the parties warrants relief declaring the rights and
liabilities of the parties pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201, and declaring and finding that Koyono has
no rights to exclude or prohibit SFAM from using the descriptive term Slimmy to describe a
particular fit of jeans.

COUNTERCLAIM COUNT 1l

Declaration of Cancellation of Trademark Registration
for Fraud on the USPTO Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1064

37.  SFAM realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1-36 as if fully set forth
herein.

38. United States Trademark Registration No. 2,994,987 (the “Registration”) was
issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office to Koyono’s predecessor on
September 13, 2005. Koyono claims that the Registration was duly and legally issued, and is
valid, subsisting and incontestable. Koyono claims that SFAM has infringed the Registration.

39.  SFAM has not directly, contributorily, by inducement, or otherwise infringed the
Registration.

40.  An actual controversy exists between SFAM and Koyono regarding the validity,
enforceability, registration and alleged infringement of the Registration.

41. By making the false statements and concealing facts from the USPTO as set forth
in paragraphs 1-36 above, and in taking the other actions alleged hereinabove, Koyono intended

to procure and maintain a registration to which Koyono is not entitled.
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42. Unless the Registration is cancelled, SFAM’s use of its SLIMMY trademark will
be unnecessarily impaired, clouded and frustrated, and SFAM will continue to be damaged
thereby.

43. The controversy between the parties warrants relief declaring the rights and
liabilities of the parties pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201, and declaring and finding that Koyono’s
United States Trademark Registration No. 2,994,987 was fraudulently obtained and should be
cancelled.

44.  This Court has the power to order the Director of the USPTO to cancel the
registration of a fraudulently obtained trademark pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1119.

COUNTERCLAIM COUNT Il

Declaration of Cancellation of Trademark Registration
for Abandonment Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1064

45.  SFAM hereby incorporate Paragraphs 1-44 as if fully set forth herein.

46.  Upon information and belief, Koyono has not used the mark SLIMMY in
connection with some of the goods recited in the Registration, namely, “change purses, hip bags
and business card cases” (the “Abandoned Goods™) for some considerable time and has thereby
abandoned the mark.

47. Upon information and belief, by not using the mark SLIMMY in connection with
the Abandoned Goods for several years or taking any action to protect the goodwill, if any,
associated with said mark, Koyono has thereby evinced an intention not to resume use of the
mark in connection with the Abandoned Goods.

48.  On the basis of Koyono’s abandonment of the mark SLIMMY,, Registration No.

2,994,987, and intention not to resume use of the mark in connection with the Abandoned
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Goods, said mark is subject to cancellation under Section 14 of the United States Trademark Act
of 1946, 15 U.S.C. § 1064.

49.  The continued registration of Registration No. 2,994,987 in the face of Koyono’s
abandonment of the cited mark in connection with the Abandoned Goods places Koyono in a
position to deceive or mislead the public, and casts a cloud on SFAM’s right to use the SLIMMY
mark and interferes with SFAM’s legitimate right to sell goods in connection with this mark in
interstate commerce. Such registration is thus a source of damage and injury to SFAM.

50. This Court has the power to order the Director of the USPTO to cancel the
registration of an abandoned trademark pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1119.

WHEREFORE, with respect to Counterclaim Counts I, Il and 111, SFAM respectfully
requests that the Court grant relief:

A Declaring that there is no likelihood of confusion between SFAM’s use of
the SLIMMY mark and Koyono’s use of the SLIMMY mark,
B. Ordering cancellation of United States Trademark Registration No.

2,994,987 based on fraud,

C. Ordering cancellation of United States Trademark Registration No.

2,994,987 based on abandonment,

D. SFAM recovers its costs, attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred herein,
E. Entering judgment for SFAM and against Koyono on all claims asserted in
this action, and

F. Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.
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COUNTERCLAIM COUNT IV

False Patent Marking Pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 292

BACKGROUND

51.  SFAM brings this counterclaim against Koyono to recover for false marking
(“False Marking Counterclaim”). For its False Marking Counterclaim against Koyono, SFAM
alleges the following based on its personal knowledge, publicly available materials, investigation
by counsel, and documents produced by Koyono with its Initial Disclosures in this Civil Action.

52.  This is a qui tam action on behalf of the public for false patent marking under 35
U.S.C. § 292.

53.  As set forth below, Koyono has violated 35 U.S.C. § 292(a), by marking the
packaging inserts of certain of its SLIMMY wallets with expired, invalid and unenforceable
patent rights for the purpose of deceiving the public. More specifically, Koyono has marked the
packaging inserts and/or used in advertising in connection with such products the word “patent”
and/or words or numbers imparting that the product is patented, while Koyono knew, or
reasonably should have known, that the articles were improperly marked. Moreover, Koyono
improperly marked numerous products with a design patent number that did not cover the
products. See The Forest Group, Inc. v. Bon Tool Co., 590 F.2d 1295, 1302-04 (Fed. Cir. 2009).

54.  35U.S.C. 8 292 exists to provide the public with notice of a party’s valid and
enforceable patent rights.

55. False marking deters innovation and stifles competition in the marketplace. More
specifically, falsely marked articles that are otherwise with the public domain deter potential
competitors from entering the same market and confuse the public.

56.  False marks may also deter scientific research when an inventor sees a mark and

deices to forego continued research to avoid possible infringement.
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57. False marking can cause unnecessary investment in costly “design arounds” or
result in the incurring of unnecessary costs to analyze the validity or enforceability of a patent
whose number has been marked upon a product with which a competitor would like to compete.

58. False marking deceives the public into believing that a patentee controls the
article in question, and permits the patentee to impermissibly extend the term of its monopoly.

59. False markings may also create a misleading impression that the falsely marked
product is technologically superior to other available products, as articles bearing the term
“patent” may be presumed to be novel, useful and innovative.

60. 35 U.S.C. § 292 specifically authorizes qui tam actions to be brought by any
person on behalf of the United States government. By permitting members of the public to sue
on behalf of the government, Congress allows individuals to help control false marking when the
U.S. government does not have the resources to do so.

61. The penalty for violating 35 U.S.C. § 292(a), SFAM seeks the imposing of a civil
fine against Koyono pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 292(b) of $500 for each offense, with one-half
going to the use of the United States and the other half going to the person bringing the action.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE FOR COUNT IV

62. SFAM is a Delaware limited liability company with offices located at 4440
E. 26™ Street, Vernon, California 90023, was founded in 2000, and sells premium denim and
related accessories to retail customers located throughout the United States and the world.

63. Koyono is an Ohio corporation with its principal place of business located at 5131
Eastover Road, Lyndhurst, Ohio 44124,

64.  This Court has exclusive jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C.

§ 1331 and 1338(a).
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65. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Koyono, because, upon information and
belief, Koyono has sold and continues to sell its falsely marked product in Ohio and in this
District and/or in the stream of commerce with knowledge that they would be sold in Ohio and in
this District. Upon information and belief, such sales by Koyono are substantial, continuous, and
systematic.

66.  Venue is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

67.  SFAM brings this action under 35 U.S.C. § 292(a), which expressly provides that
any person may sue for the civil monetary penalties imposed for each false marking offense.

FACTS - FALSE MARKING COUNTERCLAIM

68. SFAM incorporates paragraphs 51-67 as if fully set forth herein.

69. When a patent expires, all prospective rights in the patent terminate irrevocably.
Therefore, a product marked with an expired patent is not currently protected by such expired
patent.

70. A patent number by itself does not provide members of the public with
information about the scope of the patent or the expiration date of the patent.

71. Upon information and belief, Koyono is a sophisticated clothing and accessories
company and has decades of experience applying for, obtaining and maintaining patents in
conjunction with inventor, William Morehead".

72. Koyono has, or regularly retains, sophisticated legal counsel, including qualified

intellectual property counsel.

! The USPTO records show that William Morehead is the inventor of the patents that Koyono uses or has
used to mark its products, namely, Patent No. 5,024,258; Patent No. D527,899; and Patent No. 6,695,022. The
USPTO shows no assignments to Koyono.
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73. Upon information and belief, Koyono and its related entities have years of
experience applying for patents, obtaining patents and marking its products with patents and
drafting advertising related to its products that cite patent markings.

74. Upon information and belief, throughout its history, Koyono, and its related
entities, have obtained and/or maintained United States patents.

75. Upon information and belief, Koyono maintains, or its intellectual property
counsel maintains on Koyono’s behalf, an intellectual property docketing system with respect to
Koyono’s intellectual property rights, including the patents Koyono uses to mark its products.

76. Koyono knows that 35 U.S.C. § 292 prohibits a person from marking a product
with an expired patent number, a nonexistent patent number or affixing a patent to a product that
is not covered by such patent.

77. Each false marking on the products identified in this Counterclaim is likely to, or
at least has the potential to, discourage or deter persons and companies from commercializing
competing products.

78. Koyono’s false marking of its products has wrongfully stifled competition with
respect to such products thereby causing harm to SFAM, the United States, and the public.

79. Koyono has wrongfully and illegally advertised patent monopolies which it does
not possess and, as a result, has benefited by maintaining a substantial market share with respect
to the products referenced in this Counterclaim.

80. Koyono has violated 35 U.S.C. 8 292, which prohibits a person from marking a
product with an expired patent number.

81. Koyono has violated 35 U.S.C. 8 292, which prohibits a person from marking a

product with an invalid patent number.
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82. Koyono has violated 35 U.S.C. § 292, which prohibits a person from marking a
product with a patent number that does not cover such product.

COUNT IV - FALSE MARKING

83. Koyono falsely marked its SLIMMY wallets with U.S. Patent No. 5,024,258 (“the
‘258 Patent”) (the “Expired Patent”), even though the ‘258 Patent has been expired since
September 18, 2009, almost two years ago. See U.S. Pat. No. 5,024,258 entitled “Wallet”
attached as Exhibit J.

84. Upon information and belief, Koyono marked its SLIMMY wallet product
packaging inserts and online advertising material with the Expired Patent with the intent to
deceive the public and to gain a competitive advantage in the market.

85. Koyono knew, or should have known (by themselves or their representatives), the
Expired Patent marked on their products expired at least as early as 2009.

86. Koyono falsely marked its SLIMMY wallet with a U.S. Patent No. D527,89 (the
‘89 Patent” or “the Nonexistent Patent”), even though the patent was issued under the correct
patent no. D527,899. See Exhibit K for a copy of the search results from the USPTO that show
that no valid patent exists under D527,89. See also U.S. Pat. No. D527,899 entitled “Pocket
Wallet With Front Window” attached as Exhibit L.

87. Upon information and belief, Koyono marked its SLIMMY product packaging
inserts and online advertising material with the Nonexistent Patent with the intent to deceive the
public and to gain a competitive advantage in the market.

88. Koyono knew, or should have known (by themselves or their representatives), the

Nonexistent Patent was marked on its products.
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89. Koyono falsely marked numerous styles of its SLIMMY wallet with the ‘899
Patent (the 899 Patent” or the “Front Window Patent”), even though the patent, issued under the
correct patent no. D527,899, did not cover the products to which the marking is affixed. See
Exhibit L which shows that the ‘899 Patent is for wallets with a front window; see also Exhibit
M for Koyono’s online advertising for its SLIMMY Original Wallet and for photographs of
numerous SLIMMY wallets that were affixed with either the *89 Patent or the Front Window
Patent, when in fact the product was not covered under such patents.

90. Upon information and belief, Koyono intentionally marked its products with the
Expired Patent, the Nonexistent Patent and the Front Window Patent in an attempt to prevent
competitors from entering the market and for the purpose of deceiving the public into believing
that something contained in or embodied in the products is covered by or protected by the
Expired Patent and/or the Nonexistent Patent and/or the Front Window Patent.

91. Upon information and belief, Koyono knew or should have known (by themselves
or their representatives) the status and coverage of its patents when it committed multiple and
repetitive acts of false marking across a variety of advertising channels such as when it drafted
false and misleading advertising statements about its SLIMMY wallets on its own website,
operated solely under the control of Koyono, www.koyono.com, see:

@) Exhibit N advertising the Slimmy Wallet as protected by the Expired

Patent — 5,024,258 and the Front Window Patent — D 527,899; and

(b) Exhibit O advertising wwSlimmy International Wallet - Black as protected
by the Expired Patent - 5,024,258 and Nonexistent Patent - D 527,89; advertising the

wwsSlimmy International Wallet - Mocha as protected by the Expired Patent - 5,024,258

and Nonexistent Patent - D 527,89; and advertising the wwSlimmy Special Edition
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International Wallet — Black with red lining as protected by the Expired Patent -

5,024,258 and Nonexistent Patent - D 527,89.

92. Upon information and belief, Koyono drafted and provided Amazon.com with the
descriptions for its products on Amazon.com, see:

@) Exhibit P where Koyono included the language “patented design” in its
product description for its Slim Slimmy Ultra Thin Front Pocket Wallet — a wallet that is
not covered by the Expired Patent or the Front Window Patent;

(b) Exhibit Q wherein Koyono included the language “patented design” in its
product description for its wwSlimmy Special Edition International Wallet — a wallet that
is not covered by the Expired Patent or the Front Window Patent.

93. Even after filing a lawsuit under the guidance of its qualified intellectual property
counsel based on its SLIMMY trademark for the same product that Koyono marked with the
Expired Patent, the Nonexistent Patent and the Front Window Patent, Koyono produced
documents with its April 27, 2011 Initial Disclosures that readily disclosed that Koyono was
falsely marking its SLIMMY wallets with the language: “SLIMMY s a registered trademark
with the USPTO and protected by patents 5,024,258 and D527,89.” (emphasis added). See
Koyono’s Doc. ID 3:11-cv-047 000011 attached here to as Exhibit R.

94.  Asof April 25, 2011, Koyono continued to sell, import or offer for sale the
following product (“The Falsely Marked Product”), which is marked with the ‘258 Patent and
‘899 Patent, or mark the products with the ‘258 Patent, despite the fact that the ‘258 Patent
expired almost two years ago. See Exhibit S containing copies of shipping receipts and a

mailing label dated April 25, 2011 for the Falsely Marked Products. See also Exhibit T for
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photographs of the products containing the false markings on the packaging inserts that were
sealed in an envelope with the wallets.

95. Upon information and belief, Koyono is selling or offering for sale additional
products marked with the *258 Patent, which expired almost two years ago.

96. Upon information and belief, Koyono is selling or offering for sale additional
products marked with the ‘899 Patent, which is mismarked as ending in “89.

97. Upon information and belief, Koyono is selling or offering for sale additional
products marked with the Front Window Patent that are not covered by such patent.

98. Koyono falsely marked the Falsely Marked Product with the ‘258 Patent, which
expired almost two years ago.

99. Koyono falsely marked the Falsely Marked Product with the ‘89 Patent, which is
a nonexistent patent number.

100. Koyono falsely marked the Falsely Marked Product with the Front Window
Patent, which does not cover styles of the wallets without front windows.

101. Koyono knew or should have known that marking the Falsely Marked Product
with an expired patent and/or a nonexistent patent and/or a patent that did not cover the product
violates 35 U.S.C. § 292, which only authorizes marking on a “patented” article.

102. Koyono intended to deceive the public by marking or causing to be marked the
Falsely Marked Product with patents that expired and/or were nonexistent and/or were not
covered by the Front Window Patent.

103. Each false marking on Koyono’s products was likely to, or at least had the
potential to, discourage or deter persons and companies from commercializing competing

products.
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104. Koyono has wrongfully and illegally advertised its patent rights which it does not
possess, and, as a result, has benefited commercially and financially by maintaining false
statements of patent rights.

105. Upon information and belief, Koyono knew, or reasonably should have known,
that marking its products with false patent statements was illegal under Title 35 of the United
States Code. At a minimum, Koyono had and has no reasonable basis to believe that its use of
the false markings was or is proper or otherwise permitted under federal law.

106. For at least the reasons provided herein, and/or for reasons which will be later
evidenced, the Expired Patent which is marked on a product contributes to causing harm to the
United States and the general public.

107. For at least the reasons provided herein, and/or for reasons which will be later
evidenced, the Nonexistent Patent which is marked on a product contributes to causing harm to
the United States and the general public.

108. For at least the reasons provided herein, and/or for the reasons which will be later
evidenced, the Front Window Patent which is marked on products that are not covered by such
patent contributes to causing harm to the United States and the general public.

109. Thus, each Expired Patent, Nonexistent Patent and improperly marked Front
Window Patent marked on the package inserts of SLIMMY product, multiplied by the number of
packaging inserts on which it appears is a separate “offense” pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 292(a).

WHEREFORE, with respect to Counterclaim IV, SFAM respectfully requests that the
Court pursuant to 35 U.S.C. § 292, to:

A. Enter judgment against Koyono and in favor of SFAM for the violations

alleged in this Counterclaim;
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B. Enter an injunction prohibiting Koyono, and its officers, directors, agents,
servants, employees, attorneys, licensees, successors, and assigns, and those in active
concert or participation with any of them, from further violating 35 U.S.C. 8 292 by
marking, selling or offering for sale any product that is marked, including packaging,
with the *258 Patent;

C. Enter an injunction prohibiting Koyono, and its officers, directors, agents,
servants, employees, attorneys, licensees, successors, and assigns, and those in active
concert or participation with any of them, from further violating 35 U.S.C. 8 292 by
marking, selling or offering for sale any product that is marked, including packaging,
with the Nonexistent Patent;

D. Enter an injunction prohibiting Koyono, and its officers, directors, agents,
servants, employees, attorneys, licensees, successors, and assigns, and those in active
concert or participation with any of them, from further violating 35 U.S.C. 8 292 by
marking, selling or offering for sale any product not covered by the Front Window Patent
that is marked, including packaging, with the Front Window Patent;

E. Enter an injunction ordering Koyono to recall all products, including,
without limitation, the Falsely Marked Product, that Koyono has sold, caused to be sold
or otherwise caused to be placed into commerce that were marked with the ‘258 Patent,
after the expiration date of the ‘258 Patent and/or marked with the Nonexistent Patent
and/or improperly marked with the Front Window Patent;

F. Order Koyono to pay a civil monetary fine of up to $500 per false marking
violation, one-half of which shall be paid to the United States and one-half of which shall

be paid to SFAM;
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G. Enter a judgment and order requiring Koyono to pay SFAM prejudgment
and post-judgment interest on the damages awarded;
H. Order Koyono to pay SFAM’s costs and attorneys fees for bringing this
action; and
l. Grant SFAM such other and further relief as it may deem just and proper.
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
SFAM demands a jury trial of any and all issues triable of right by a jury in the above-

captioned action.
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Attorney for Defendant
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